NORTH AND EAST PLANS PANEL

THURSDAY, 3RD NOVEMBER, 2016

PRESENT: Councillor N Walshaw in the Chair

Councillors R Grahame, J Procter, G Wilkinson, B Cleasby, S McKenna, P Wadsworth, S Arif, C Dobson, S Hamilton and K Ritchie

Site visits were held in the morning and these were attended by Councillors Walshaw, J Procter, Wilkinson, S McKenna and Ritchie.

78 Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents

There were no appeals against refusal of inspection of documents. Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public

There were no exempt items.

80 Late Items

79

There were no formal late items. However, there was supplementary information in relation to Agenda Item 6 Minutes. The minutes of the meeting held on 13th October 2016 had not been cleared for publishing when the agenda for the 3rd November meeting was despatched. <u>Minute no. 83 refers</u>

81 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests. However, Cllr. John Procter brought to the attention of the Panel that he knew both applicants who were present at the meeting.

82 Apologies for Absence

There were no apologies for absence.

83 Minutes

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 29th September 2016 be confirmed as a correct record subject to the following amendment: Minute no. 70 page 9 of the agenda, 4th paragraph second bullet point to read 'That both left and right curtilage walls of the lodge may be listed structures as part of the Harewood Estate'.

That the minutes of the 13th October 2016 which had been received as a supplementary item, item 80 refers were approved as a correct record.

84 Application 16/02799/FU Division of existing detached house into two dwellings at The Close, Scarsdale Ridge, Bardsey, Leeds

The Chief Planning Officer submitted a report which sought permission to subdivide a single dwelling to form two dwellings. The key issue in this case was highway safety and the intensification of use of the junction of Scarsdale Ridge with the A58.

This application was reported to Plans Panel at the request of two Ward Councillors.

The Panel was informed that the applicant wished to split the current dwelling into two self-contained dwellings one for the applicant and one for his son. The site was located in the Green Belt and it was considered that the proposal complied with planning policies and guidance in all other respects.

Members noted that the junction of Scarsdale Ridge with the A58 had limited visibility that falls significantly below local and national standards. Members were informed that Scarsdale Ridge was an un-adopted road, which was unlit, narrow with passing places and had a 90 degree bend at the top of the road. The road already served around 25 dwellings.

Oliver Beaumont the applicant's son was present at the meeting and informed the Panel that his parents wished to convert their current dwelling into two dwelling one for themselves and the other for him and his young son.

Mr Beaumont informed Members that the only reason for refusal was the access to the A58. He said that it had not been an issue when previous development of new houses of Scarsdale Ridge had been proposed. He also said that neither neighbours nor the Parish Council had objected to his father's proposals.

Members noted that at 6.2 of the submitted report the Parish Council had raised no significant issues with the division of the dwelling but had commented that the new dwelling within the green belt could be deemed as an inappropriate form of development.

Mr Beaumont told the Panel that he currently visited his parents at least once daily and sometimes twice daily, and therefore he could see no difference in the volume of traffic using the junction. Mr Beaumont said that he had not experienced any difficulties accessing the drive.

The Panel heard from the Highways Officer who informed them that the application had been assessed as a typical house within the use class, rather than on the personal circumstances of this particular applicant. A typical dwelling would mean that generally there would be 6 to 8 movements per dwelling per day and therefore the A58 junction would see an increase in trips. He explained that the A58 was very fast with a speed limit of 50mph, that visibility from the access was very substandard and that accidents had been recorded along the A58 in the vicinity of the junction. There were 24 recorded injury accidents since 2000.

Cllr. Cleasby asked to recommend that no further development take place at this location.

The Panel noted that signage used further down to indicate a concealed access would not be effective unless driver behaviour changed.

Members were of the view that they were being distracted from the application by the highways issues and that additional trips had not been demonstrated. Members further commented that the Highway Authority should pursue improvements along the A58 if that is necessary for road safety.

At the conclusion of the discussions, Councillor Wadsworth moved a motion to reject the recommendations as detailed within the submitted report, so that the application be granted. The motion was seconded by Councillor Arif. On being put to the vote, Councillor Wadsworth's motion was passed, and it was

RESOVLED - That :-

- a) The officer recommendation as detailed within the submitted report be rejected, and as such, the application be granted.
- b) Members approved planning permission be deferred and delegated to the Chief Planning Officer and;
- c) To look at improvements on this road and the reduction of the speed limit.

85 PREAPP/15/00882 Residential development of land North of Wetherby Road, Bardsey, Leeds, LS17 9BD

The Chief Planning Officer submitted a report outlining a pre-application presentation for a residential development of up to 150 dwellings and public open space at land at Wetherby Road, Bardsey, LS17 9BD. As this was a pre-application presentation there was no formal decision taken at this meeting.

The development site is to be located in the Green Belt which sits between the residential area known as The Congreves and The Drive within the village of Bardsey and forms the western extremity of the Braham Park Estate.

The landowner Nicholas Lane Fox of The Bramham Park Estate and his representatives Savills were at the meeting to present the emerging scheme for the residential development of a Green Belt site in Bardsey.

As the site was located within Green Belt the proposal constitutes inappropriate development. Therefore the Bramham Park Estate and their promoters put forward a case to demonstrate very special circumstances to try and overcome the principle of objection to new housing at this site.

Mr Lane Fox informed the Panel that numerous restoration and refurbishment works were required to a number of Grade I, Grade II* and Grade II listed buildings located within the Bramham Park Estate, which is itself a Grade 1 Registered Park and Garden. Members noted that the Estate contained a total of 27 listed buildings and structures which were considered to be of special architectural or historic interest. A list was provided at 2.3 of the submitted report.

Members were informed that Bramham hosts events including the Bramham Horse Trials and the Leeds Festival and that the house and gardens were open to the public by appointment, they hold 2 public services per month at the church and there are also public pathways and bridle paths across the estate.

Mr Lane Fox and his representative set out the benefits of the development on the site as:-

- 35% affordable housing on this site
- 7 hectares of public park
- Improved drainage and reduced local flooding
- Cycle access from The Drive
- 1 Main access point to Wetherby Road via a new bridge over the beck
- More bus stops
- Reduction of speed limit on Wetherby Road to 30mph

It was noted that a public consultation event had taken place at which 220 people had attended. The representative said that the main issues raised at the event had been in relation to increased traffic, registration at local doctors and school places at local schools.

The representative informed the Panel that research had been done on the issues for concern and it had been found that the local school had a capacity for 210 pupils with 191 currently on roll. They informed the Members that some of the pupils currently attending the school were from outside the area. It was the view of the representative that CIL money could be used to provide more places at the school.

The representative informed the Panel that when enquiring at the doctors she had been informed that they were taking on new patients.

Members were informed that monitoring of the traffic had taken place by the applicant's consultants including traffic movements, gradient of road, direction of traffic, speed of traffic and the size of the access.

Members noted that the development of the site would produce a net income of £8 million which would present a £2 million shortfall.

Members queried the assets in relation to the estate and were informed that the estate had 30 houses spread aross Bramham, Rigton and Clifford. The Estate also had 5000 acres of land.

In response to a number of questions in relation to funding for the restoration and refurbishment of historic structures Mr Lane Fox explained that he had considered a number of options including the National Trust but this would involve the estate being sold to them and he preferred to continue on at the estate and manage it. He had also considered Historic England but this would result in the estate becoming fragmented, and Heritage Lottery Fund was only available to charitable organisations.

Mr Lane Fox told Members that if the repairs were not undertaken the structures would degenerate and eventually fall down. He said that it was the duty of himself as the landowner and Leeds City Council to restore the structures for future generations. He said that certain structures had been identified as requiring emergency repairs over the next four years.

In response to an earlier question Members were informed that there would be one entrance to the development and that it was envisaged that there would be up to 100 vehicles accessing the new development in the peak hours. However, it was noted that the representatives indicated that more details would be available at an application stage.

The Chair thanked Mr Lane Fox and his representatives for their presentation and said that there had been a significant number of issues raised which would need addressing and that the development was asking a lot of the local community given the concerns raised at the consultation event.

Councillor Rachael Procter Ward Councillor for Harewood and Mr Gittins a resident of Bardsey attended the meeting to share the concerns of the local community.

Cllr. R Procter informed the Panel that this site had not featured as part of the site allocation process as it was listed as amber or red for a number of reasons including :-

- Ribbon development
- Schools
- Doctors
- Flooding
- Highways

Cllr. R Procter raised a number of questions including:-

- What the benefits were to residents of Leeds once the structures had been restored
- What were the finances of the estate
- What was the rental income from properties held by the estate
- Why the limited access for public opening
- Need for the District Valuer to produce a report on management fees

Mr Gittins informed the Panel that he had been a resident of Bardsey for 41 years and although he did not live on The Drive he represented the residents of Bardsey. He said that he had fought for many years to save the Green Belt.

He informed the Panel that the residents had only been informed recently that the pre application was to be presented to the North and East Panel. He said that it had not provided him with sufficient time to prefer a full representation or deliver a petition of 200 signatures against the development. He told Members that the 200 signatures had been received from the 220 people that had attended the public consultation event.

Mr Gittins had produced a number of photographs which were shown at the meeting and included views of flooding in the area, the limited access for vehicles on The Drive and also a number of blind spots on the A58 close to the entrance that would be used to the development. It was also noted that there would be a separate access point at Margaret Avenue.

Mr Gittins raised a number of issues and concerns of local residents including:

- The need to look at Historic England's guidance for enabling development and judge the proposals against that
- Flooding on the scale seen in previous years
- Risk of localised flash flooding
- Limited vehicle access particularly on The Drive
- Dips in the road towards Collingham which cause blind spots
- The fact that the development would include 3 storey dwellings of which there are currently none in Bardsey
- The serious urban intrusion in the Green Belt

Mr Gittins did say that the cycle ways and footpaths would be a welcome addition to the area.

Mr Gittins raised concerns about two companies Standby Ltd and Winthorne Ltd who he cites as being part of the development.

Members noted that Harewood House Estate nearby offers discounted entry to local residents and that the Harewood Estate is open to the public for most of the year.

Local Ward Councillors informed the Panel that they had only been made aware that the pre-application was coming to Panel as they had attended the public consultation. Cllr. R Procter informed the Panel that she had attended the consultation meeting as a resident not as the Ward Councillor she said that there had been no leaflets sent to residents and she had only become aware of the proposal because she is the Ward Councillor.

Members were made aware that a location at Keswick Lane owned by the Catholic Church had been cited as suitably for 2 bed units.

Mr Lane Fox said that no public money was to be used for this scheme.

Members were reminded that this was a pre-application and that the Panel had debated the issues raised by both parties.

The Chair asked officers and the developers to consider all the issues raised by Mr Gittins and Cllr. R Procter before bringing the application back to Panel. **RESOLVED**- That the report and the discussion be noted.

Members of North and East Plans Panel requested that officers and the developers consider the follow list of issues before coming back to Panel:

- 1. Need for more details in the report including;
 - More information around special circumstances
 - Risk management of flooding
 - Maintenance and up keep of listed buildings
 - Income and expenditure of the estate
 - Objection details from residents group
 - More time given for objectors to make their representations
 - Green Belt boundary
 - Heritage guidelines
 - Documents signed
 - Structures listed on order of priority
 - What the estate intends to do to cover the shortfall in finance
 - Site allocation red / amber listing
 - Finances of the estate
 - Private assets of the estate
 - CIL monies
 - Traffic and highways issues
- 2. Works to alleviate flood risk including
 - a. ground works
 - b. impact on layout
- 3. Housing types including;
 - a. Affordable housing
 - b. Sustainable / passive housing
 - c. Bungalows, semi-detached, detached
- 4. Sustainability of the development to include;
 - a. Location of nearest schools
 - b. How many cars envisaged using the access point on to the A58
- 5. Need for specific information for Section 106 to include;
 - a. Environment and flooding
 - b. 106 and CIL money to be discussed with Ward Members early in the process

86 Date and Time of Next Meeting

 $\mbox{RESOLVED}$ – To note that the next North and East Plans Panel will be held on Thursday 1st December 2016 at 1:30pm.